
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  
 

AGENDA 
§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 

Tuesday, October 15, 2019 at 1:00 p.m.  
Truckee Meadows Water Authority  

Independence Room 
1355 Capital Boulevard, Reno, NV 89502 

 

 
1. Roll call* 

2. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

3. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 

4. Approval of the July 16, 2019 minutes (For Possible Action) 

5. Review and consideration for approval of request for reimbursement of premiums Medicare 
paid for through Social Security —Rosalinda Rodriguez (For Possible Action) 

6. Review and consideration for approval of request for reimbursement of premiums for 
Medicare premiums paid for through Social Security—Rosalinda Rodriguez (For Possible 
Action) 

7. Review and consideration for approval of request for reimbursement of premiums for 
Medicare, United Health Care and RX Coverage paid for by retiree —Rosalinda Rodriguez (For 
Possible Action) 

8. Review and consideration for approval of request for reimbursement of premiums for United 
Health Care paid for by retiree—Rosalinda Rodriguez (For Possible Action) 

9. Discussion and possible Trustee direction regarding potential beneficiaries’ eligibility that were 
hired prior to January 1, 2006 at the creation of the VEBA document. Jessica Atkinson (For 
Possible Action) 

10. Review of Retirement Benefits Investment Fund (RBIF) performance review—Michele Sullivan* 

11. Discussion and possible Trustee direction regarding meeting times and dates for 2020—Jessica 
Atkinson (For Possible Action) 

12. Trustee comments and requests for future agenda items* 

  



§501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust                     
  A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority  
 

13. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

14. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

 

NOTES: 
1. The announcement of this meeting has been posted at the following locations: Truckee Meadows Water Authority (1355 Capital Blvd., Reno), 
Reno City Hall (1 E. First St., Reno), Sparks City Hall (431 Prater Way, Sparks), Sparks Justice Court (1675 E. Prater Way, Sparks), Washoe County 
Courthouse (75 Court St., Reno), Washoe County Central Library (301 South Center St., Reno), Washoe County Administration (1001 East Ninth St., 
Reno), and at http://www.tmwa.com. 
2. In accordance with NRS 241.020, this agenda closes three working days prior to the meeting. We are pleased to make reasonable 
accommodations for persons who are disabled and wish to attend meetings. If you require special arrangements for the meeting, please call 834-
8002 before the meeting date. 
3. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay discussion on agenda 
items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest. 
4. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items. 
5. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment periods. The public may sign-up to speak during the 
public comment period or on a specific agenda item by completing a “Request to Speak” card and submitting it to the clerk. In addition to the public 
comment periods, the Chairman has the discretion to allow public comment on any agenda item, including any item on which action is to be taken. 

http://www.tmwa.com/
http://www.tmwa.com/


 10/15/2019 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 1 of 5 
July 16, 2019  
 

Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust 
 A single employer plan sponsored by 
  Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
  

 
DRAFT JULY 16, 2019 MINUTES 

The meeting of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Plan and Trust (Trust) Trustees was held on Tuesday, July 
16, 2019 in the Truckee Meadows Water Authority Independence Room, 1355 Capital Blvd., Reno, Nevada. 
 
Michele Sullivan, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 1:01 P.M.  
   
1. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF PRESENCE OF A QUORUM.  

A quorum was present. 

Voting Members Present: Voting Members Absent 
Michele Sullivan  
Juan Esparza  
Steve Enos    
James Weingart 
 
Members Present Members Absent: 
Jessica Atkinson        
Rosalinda Rodriguez 
Mike Venturino 
Gus Rossi 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 No public comment 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent 
of the Trustees present, the Trustees approved the agenda. 

4. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 25, 2019 MINUTES 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent 
of the Trustees present, the Trustees approved the April 25, 2019 
minutes. 

  



 10/15/2019 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 2 of 5 
July 16, 2019  
 

5. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST CALCULATIONS FOR 
TMWA RETIREE MARIA DUFUR. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented the benefits calculation for Maria Dufur.  Ms. Dufur will retire on 
09/3/2019 and is requesting trust benefits beginning on 10/01/2019.  Ms. Atkinson previously 
met with the retiree and confirmed the information on the benefit calculation form.  She has 
elected to continue TMWA coverage as Retiree only for Medical, Dental, and Vision coverage. 
Ms. Dufur has elected to have any remaining premium balance paid from her retirement Health 
Savings (RHS) or PERS check. 

 Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Maria Dufur. 

6. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST CALCULATIONS FOR 
TMWA RETIREE GERALD GARZA. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented the benefits calculation for Gerald Garza.  Mr. Garza will retire on 
09/22/2019 and is requesting trust benefits beginning on 10/01/2019.  Ms. Rodriguez previously 
met with the retiree and confirmed the information on the benefit calculation form.  He has 
elected to continue TMWA coverage as Retiree only for Medical, Dental, and Vision coverage. 
Mr. Garza has elected to have any remaining premium balance paid from his retirement Health 
Savings (RHS) or PERS check. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Gerald Garza. 

7. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL PLAN & TRUST CALCULATIONS FOR 
TMWA RETIREE KEITH RISTINEN. 

Ms. Rodriguez presented the benefits calculation for Keith Ristinen.  Mr. Ristinen will retire on 
08/01/2019 and is requesting trust benefits beginning on 09/01/2019.  Ms. Rodriguez previously 
met with the retiree and confirmed the information on the benefit calculation form.  He has 
elected to continue TMWA coverage as Retiree and spouse for Dental and Vision coverage. Mr. 
Ristinen has elected to have any remaining premium balance paid from his retirement Health 
Savings (RHS) or PERS check. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the benefits calculation for Keith Ristinen. 

8. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT MEDICARE 
PREMIUMS PAID FOR THROUGH SOCIAL SECURITY. 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for Medicare paid for 
through Social Security. 

  



 10/15/2019 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 3 of 5 
July 16, 2019  
 

 

9. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
PREMIUMS FOR UNITED HEALTH CARE PREMIUM PAID FOR BY RETIREE   

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement for United Health Care. 

10. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
PREMIUMS FOR UNITED HEALTH CARE AND RX COVERAGE PAID FOR BY RETIREE 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for United Health Care and RX coverage. 

11. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF REQUESTS FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
PREMIUMS FOR MEDICARE PAID FOR THROUGH SOCIAL SECURITY 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for Medicare Premiums paid 
for through Social Security. 

12. REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
PREMIUMS FOR UNITED HEALTH CARE PAID FOR BY RETIREE 

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved the reimbursement request for premiums for United Health Care. 

13. REVIEW OF AUDIT  

Ms. Sullivan advised that the Audit had been conducted and there were no findings, everything 
is in order.  There was negative investment income due to the market’s status at the end of 
2018, but the market has since gone back up and currently at a return rate of 5%.  Based on the 
end of year performance it was determined that the investment loss was about $257,000 but 
TMWA also contributed $222,531 based on the actuary’s calculations. This contribution is to 
cover upcoming recurring expenses such as benefits and administrative fees. 

This was information no action required. 

14. REVIEW OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS INVESTMENT FUND (RBIF) PERFORMANCE 

Ms. Sullivan stated that as of December 31, 2018 the investment return to date is 5.3%.  In the 
past the assumption used has been a 6% return which has been met historically. The market has 
fluctuated since December 31st to be a positive return.  Ms. Sullivan advised she expects to have 
the report from March 2019 to present at the next meeting to review the results. 

This was information, no action required.  



 10/15/2019 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 4 of 5 
July 16, 2019  
 

15. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE TRUSTEE DIRECTION FOR TRUST DOCUMENT VERBIAGE REGARDING 
A BENEFICIARY SPOUSE ELIGIBLITY FOR CONTINUATION OF BENEFIT 

 At the April 25th meeting, there was an agenda item to discuss interpretation of the VEBA 
document’s verbiage on page 15 section 4.1.5  

“The surviving spouse of a deceased Participant who was covered by a Health Plan on 
the Participant’s death of the Participant, many continue receiving coverage under the 
Health Plan for three years after the death of the Participant if permitted by the Health 
Plan and applicable law. Such coverage is to begin on the first day of the month 
following the month of the Participant’s death. The plan will pay a portion of the 
premiums for coverage under the Health Plan for the first year after the Participant’s 
death by computing Post-Retirement Benefits under this Plan as if the surviving spouse 
was the Participant.”  

The question presented to the Trust’s attorney, was whether or not the spouse had to be on the 
same plan as the Participant at the time of the Participant’s death in order to be eligible to have 
the plan pay a portion of the premiums for coverage under the Health Plan for the first year 
after the Participant’s death by computing Post-Retirement Benefits under this Plan as if the 
surviving spouse was the Participant. Trust Attorney, Mr. Gus Rossi, opined that his 
interpretation of this section of the plan document   was that in order for the spouse to qualify 
for the benefit, they would need to have been on the same plan as the Participant at the time 
the Participant passed away.   

After discussion of Mr. Rossi’s interpretation, Trustees articulated concern with the 
interpretation as they believed the original intent was to provide a benefit to the surviving 
spouse for the first year following the retiree’s death. Trustee’s directed Staff to consider 
options up to and including amending the trust document that would allow for the spouse to 
receive a surviving benefit for the fist year after the death of the Participant regardless of 
whether they were on the same plan. 

 During the July 16, 2019 meeting, Ms. Atkinson presented Article 7.1 of the trust document, 
which states in part, the Trustees’ power and sole discretion shall include, but shall not be 
limited to, the following authority, in addition to all other powers provided by this plan: (b) To 
interpret the plan in good faith with such interpretation to be final and conclusive on all persons 
claiming benefits under the Plan…” 

Additionally, Article 8.18, Standards of Interpretation was presented and states: This Plan and 
Trust are designed and intended to comply with applicable law. The Trustees are vested with the 
power to interpret the Plan and Trust, and their interpretation, if not in conflict with plain 
meaning of the Plan and Trust or any applicable law or government regulation, shall be final and 
conclusive. The Trustees, and any entity or person approved by the Trustees, shall have the full 
discretionary authority to determine eligibility for Post-Retirement Benefits awarded und the 
Plan and to construe the terms of the Plan and Trust. 
 
Based on Article 7.1 and 8.18, Ms. Atkinson believes trustees could interpret the surviving 
spouse benefit language in Article 4.1.5, as allowing the surviving spouse to receive the same 



 10/15/2019 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 04 

 
Minutes of the TMWA Post-Retirement Medical Trust Trustees Page 5 of 5 
July 16, 2019  
 

benefit the retiree would have received for the first year following the death of the Participant 
regardless of whether they were enrolled on the same plan.  

Mr. Rossi agreed with Ms. Atkinson’s interpretation of the intent of the plan document and 
opined that the Trustees could interpret 4.1.5 as allowing a surviving spouse to receive  benefits 
for the first year after the Participant’s death by computing Post-Retirement Benefits under this 
plan as if the surviving spouse were the participant regardless of whether the spouse was on the 
same plan at the time of the Participant’s death. Such interpretation by the trustees would not 
be in conflict of the plan document. 

 Discussion ensued and it was determined that trustee’s interpretation of the plan document is 
such that a surviving spouse would be eligible for the first year following the Participant’s death 
regardless of whether or not they were on the same plan as the participant, so long as they 
were enrolled in a qualified plan at the time of the Participant’s death and continue to be 
enrolled in a qualified plan.  Trustees will clarify this language in any future plan amendments. 
Until then, their interpretation will stand.  

Upon motion made and seconded, and carried by unanimous consent of the Trustees present, 
the Trustees approved to interpret the surviving spouse benefit to allow a surviving spouse to 
be eligible for and receive a benefit under the plan for the first year following the Participant’s 
death regardless of whether or not the spouse and Participant were on the same plan at the 
time of the Participant’s death. To qualify the, spouse must have been enrolled in a qualified 
plan at the time of the Participant’s death and continue to be enrolled in a qualified plan.    

 

16. TRUSTEE COMMENTS AND REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS. 

RBIF 

17. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 No public comment 

18. ADJOURNMENT  

With no further business to discuss, Chairman Sullivan adjourned the meeting at _1:30_ p.m. 

Minutes were approved by the Trustees in session on _____________. 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 
________________________________________________ 
Rosalinda Rodriguez, Recording Secretary 



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 05



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 05



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 05



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 06



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 06



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 06



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 07



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 08



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 09



Asset Class Market Value Target 
Allocation

Actual 
Allocation

FYTD 
Return One Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years

Since 
Inception 

(2008)

U.S. Stocks- S&P 500 Index 269,877,170$     50.5% 50.5% 10.4% 10.4% 14.2% 10.7% 14.7% 9.2%
Market Return 10.4% 10.4% 14.2% 10.7% 14.7% 9.2%
Int'l Stocks- MSCI World x US Index 114,354,987$     21.5% 21.4% 1.4% 1.4% 9.4% 2.5% 7.3% 2.6%
Market Return 1.8% 1.8% 9.4% 2.4% 7.0% 2.5%
U.S. Bonds- U.S. Bond Index 143,650,736$     28.0% 26.9% 7.3% 7.3% 1.4% 2.4% 3.4% 3.4%
Market Return 7.2% 7.2% 1.3% 2.5% 3.1% 3.2%

6,381,669$         0.0% 1.2%

Market Return 7.9% 7.9% 9.4% 6.6% 9.9% 6.6%

6.7% 6.5%

Retirement Benefits Investment Fund
June 30, 2019

Performance

Total RBIF Fund 534,264,562$     100.0% 100.0% 8.0% 8.0% 9.5% 9.9%

10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 10



10-15-19 PRMT §501-c-9 Agenda Item 11  

  Page 1 of 1 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Jessica Atkinson, TMWA Human Resources Administrator 

DATE: October 15, 2019 

SUBJECT: Discussion and direction regarding meeting times and dates for 2020 

 

Recommendation  

TMWA staff recommends that the Board of Trustees provide input on the schedule proposed for 

the TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust meetings as well as confirmation of 

meeting times. 

 

Discussion  

The regular schedule for the TMWA §501-c-9 Post-Retirement Medical Plan & Trust meetings 

has traditionally been quarterly on the third Tuesday of the month.   

 

Staff recommends continuing with the current reoccurring schedule as follows:   

 

2020 Trustee Meeting Dates Proposed 

Tuesday, January 21  1:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, April 21  1:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, July 21  1:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, October 20  1:00 p.m. 

 

 

  

 

 


	2019.1015 PRMT Agenda Final
	2019.1015 PRMT 04 Minutes of July 16 meeting draft
	DRAFT JULY 16, 2019 MINUTES

	2019.1015 PRMT 05 Reimbursement request_Medicare through social security
	2019.1015 PRMT 06 Reimbursement request_medicare paid through social security
	2019.1015 PRMT 07 Reimbursement request_Medicare_United Heatlh and RX
	2019.1015 PRMT 08 Reimbursement request_United Health care and RX
	2019.1015 PRMT 09 PRPMT Materials Distributed Prior to VEBA
	2019.1015 PRMT 10 RBIF-Investment-Performance 06302019
	JRS

	2019.1015 PRMT 11 Discussion and direction on possible meeting times 2020



